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Acknowledgement of Notice of Public Meeting
Public Comment
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Approval of the Financial Audit for FY2025 (Action Item — See Attachment)
Approval of IRS Form 990 (Action Item — See Attachment)
Review of the 1st Quarter Report (Information Item — See Attachment)
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a. Amendment to NCF/Truist trust agreement covenant

Adjournment



New College of Florida
New College of Florida Development Corporation (NCDC) Board of Directors and
New College of Florida Property Corporation (NCPC) Board of Directors
DRAFT Minutes of May 30, 2025

Directors and Officers in Attendance:

Director Richard Corcoran - Chair

Executive Director/Secretary - Christie Fitz-Patrick
Director David Rancourt - University Representative
Director Ron Christaldi - BOT Designee

Director Sydney Gruters - Foundation Designee

Absent
None

Call to Order
Chairman Corcoran called the virtual meeting to order at 11:00 AM and proceeded to call roll.

Confirmation of Public Notice
Ms. Fitz-Patrick confirmed the meeting had been publicly noticed. Ms. Fitz-Patrick advised there
were no public commenters.

Approval of Minutes as of June 26, 2024 (last meeting held on April 26, 2024) Meeting of the
New College Development Corporation and the New College Property Corporation — (Action
Iltem

Minutes were reviewed. Mr. Christaldi moved to approve the Minutes for the NCDC/NCPC held on
April 26, 2024. Motion seconded by Mr. Rancourt. Motion to approve was carried unanimously and
all were in favor.

Approval of the Financial Audit for FY2024 (Action ltem — See Attachment)
Motion to approve the Financial Audit for FY2024 was made by Mr. Christaldi. Motion seconded by
Mr. Rancourt. Motion to approve was carried unanimously and all were in favor.

Approval of IRS Form 990 (Action Iltem — See Attachment)

Motion made by Mr. Christaldi to approve the IRS Form 990. It was seconded by Mr. Rancourt.
Motion to approve the IRS Form 990 was carried unanimously and all were in favor. The IRS Form
990 was timely filed.

Review of the FY25 Quarterly Reports (Information ltem — See Attachment)
All were in favor.

Review and Approval of the 2025/2026 Budget (Action ltem — See Attachment)
Mr. Rancourt made a motion to approve the 2025/2026 Budget. It was seconded by Mr. Christaldi.
Motion to approve was carried unanimously and all were in favor to approve the 2025/2026 Budget.

Open Discussion/Other Iltems (Action Item)
There being no other business, President Corcoran adjourned the meeting at 11:15 AM.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
New College of Florida Development Corporation
Sarasota, Florida

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New College of Florida Development
Corporation (the “Development Corporation”), a component unit of New College of Florida, as of and for the
years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Development Corporation’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Development Corporation, as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, and the changes in its financial
position and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are required to be independent of the Development Corporation and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Development Corporation’s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Development Corporation’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Development Corporation's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management'’s
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 8 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 21, 2025,
on our consideration of the Development Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Development Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Development Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

W euledin, ? Giner, CC

Bradenton, Florida
October 21, 2025
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Overview of the Financial Statements and Financial Analysis

This section of the New College of Florida Development Corporation’s (the “Development Corporation”)
annual financial report presents a discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the Development
Corporation during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024. It provides an analytical overview of the
financial activities during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, with the 2023 fiscal year data
presented for comparative purposes. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements and related notes. Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of this information rests
with the Development Corporation’s management.

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements, prepared in accordance with the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB") Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and
Management Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments, and GASB Statement No. 35, Basic
Financial Statements and Management Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universities, as amended.
The Development Corporation is considered a Business-Type Activity (“BTA") under the provision and
reporting model of GASB Statement No. 34 and No. 35. Itis prepared under the accrual basis of accounting,
whereby revenues and assets are recognized when the service is provided and expenses and liabilities are
recognized when goods or services are received, regardless of when cash is exchanged.

Financial Highlights

As a condition for the financing of the new dorms, New College of Florida (the “College”) entered into a
ground lease with the New College of Florida Property Corporation (the “Property Corporation”). The
College leases the respective project land on its campus to the Property Corporation, which assigned all of
its interests in the lease to the Development Corporation. The property covered by the Master Ground
Lease, together with improvements (i.e., student housing) thereon, is leased back by the College to manage
and operate through the Master Operating Lease and Facilities Sublease and Management Agreement. The
master lease shall terminate on the date which the certificates and any related obligations are paid in full.
Revenues from student housing are pledged to pay rent to the Development Corporation or its assignees
equal to the debt service on the long-term debt, as well as any operating costs.

The Housing complex is managed and operated by the College’s Department of Housing and Residence Life
and consists of the following facilities:

e A 74-bed apartment style student residential facility (Dort Hall-opened 1998).

e A 76-bed apartment style student residential facility (Goldstein Hall-opened 1999).
e A 43-bed dorm style student residential facility (B Dorm Hall-opened 1966).

e A 213-bed apartment style student residential facility (V-Z Halls-opened 2007).

During the 2024-2025 academic year, the College retired three residential facilities: Johnson Hall, Bates Hall,
and Rothenberg Hall. To support ongoing housing needs, B Dorm Hall was brought back online. Additionally,
the College secured agreements with the University of South Florida Sarasota-Manatee (USF) for 90 beds
and with nearby hotels for 133 beds to provide supplemental student housing.
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Statements of Net Position

The statements of net position present the assets (current and noncurrent), deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities (current and noncurrent), and net position (assets plus deferred outflows of resources minus
liabilities) as of the end of the fiscal years. The purpose of the statement of net position is to present to the
reader of the financial statements a fiscal snapshot of the Development Corporation at June 30, 2025 and
2024,

From the data presented, readers of the statements of net position are able to determine the assets
available to continue operations of the Development Corporation. In addition, they are also able to
determine how much the Development Corporation owes vendors and other parties. For 2025, 2024, and
2023 as noted below, the decrease in total assets is primarily due to the reduction in the Investment in
Direct Financing Lease. The increase in current liabilities reflects an increase in the current portion of long-
term debt payable. Noncurrent liabilities have decreased due to a decrease in long-term debt payable. The
changes in total assets, deferred outflows of resources and liabilities resulted in an overall decrease in net
position of $2,492 from 2024 to 2025, and $2,492 from 2023 to 2024. Over time, the changes in net position
provide an indication of the overall financial condition of the Development Corporation. The following is a
condensed version of the statement of net position as of June 30, 2025, 2024, and 2023:

Net Position of the Development Corporation

Years Ended June 30, 2025 2024 2023
Current Assets $ 1,878,198 $ 1,880,733 $ 1,876,313
Noncurent Assets 16,470,681 17,592,428 18,670,715

Total Assets $ 18,348,879 $ 19,473,161 $ 20,547,028
Current Liabilities $ 1309434 $ 1273716 $ 1,232,582
Noncurrent Liabilities 16,763,172 17,920,680 19,033,189

Total Liabilities 18,072,606 19,194,396 20,265,771
Total Net Position, restricted $ 276,273 $ 278,765 $ 281,257

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Changes in net position of the Development Corporation, as presented on the statements of net position,
are based on the activity presented in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.
The purpose of the statements is to show the operating and nonoperating revenues earned by the
Development Corporation, the operating and nonoperating expenses incurred by the Development
Corporation, and any other revenues, expenses, gains, and losses earned or incurred by the Development
Corporation. Operating revenues represent rental income received from the College and operating
expenses represent expenses paid for debt service on outstanding bonds payable. Operating revenues
during 2025 fiscal year decreased 7.23% over the 2024 level and 2.89% between 2024 and 2023. On the
following page is a condensed version of the changes in net position for the years ended June 30, 2025,
2024, and 2023.
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Changes in Net Position of the Development Corporation

Years Ended June 30, 2025 2024 2023
Operating Revenues $ 624,030 $ 672,660 $ 692,687
Operating Expenses (624,030) (672,660) (692,687)

Nonoperating Revenues

and Expenses, net (2,492) (2,492) (2,492)
Change in Net Position (2,492) (2,492) (2,492)
Net Position, Beginning of Year 278,765 281,257 283,749
Net Position, End of Year $ 276,273 $ 278,765 $ 281,257

Statement of Cash Flows

The statements of cash flows present detailed information about the cash activity of the Development
Corporation during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024. The statements are divided into two
parts. The first part deals with operating cash flows and shows the net cash used in the operating activities
of the Development Corporation. The second deals with cash flows from capital and related financing
activities.

The major source of funds included in operating activities is student residence, net rental income received
from the College and interest paid on debt. The largest outflow of funds in the capital financing group
includes principal payments on debt. The following includes condensed information from the statements of
cash flows for the years ended June 30, 2025, 2024, and 2023.

Cash Flows of the Development Corporation

Years Ended June 30, 2025 2024 2023

Net Cash Provided by

Operating Activities $ 1,714,890 $ 1,702,020 $ 1,692,484
Net Cash Used in Capital and

Related Financing Activities (1,714,890) (1,702,020) (1,692,484)
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

The Development Corporation issued Series 2006 Certificates of Participation (“COPS”) in the amount of
$30,110,000 during April 2006. The COPS are to be repaid from housing system revenues of the College. At
June 30, 2025 and 2024, the total amount of debt to be repaid was $17,950,000 and $19,065,000,
respectively. COPS are presented net of the unamortized discount in the statements of net position.

In order to hedge its interest rate risk on the variable rate debt, the Development Corporation entered into
an interest rate swap agreement, which effectively fixed the interest for a ten-year period which was due to
expire July 1, 2016. The Swap agreement was amended in 2016 in order to match the terms of the debt as
noted below.

Due to the increased cost of renewing the Letter of Credit secured by SunTrust Bank, the Development
Corporation requested and received proposals for alternative options to restructure the Series 2006 COPS
from qualified financial institutions. The proposal submitted by SunTrust Bank to purchase and hold the
Series 2006 Certificates for its own account for a period of at least ten years, presented the most favorable
terms. In order to remarket the original Series 2006 COPS to SunTrust Bank, it was necessary to amend and
restate the Series 2006 Supplemental Trust agreement and the Series 2006 Lease to provide for the direct
purchase of the Series 2006 COPS by SunTrust Bank. The Series 2006 COPS were remarketed on April 9,
2012, as a non-bank qualified tax-exempt variable facility with an interest rate equal to 77% of the sum of
the 30-day London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") index plus 185 basis points. The amended swap
agreement was for a ten-year period, which expired in April of 2022. The swap provided an effectively fixed
rate as follows: 77% of the 30-day LIBOR is fixed at 3.30%, plus 77% of 1.85% equaling 1.4245%. The sum of
these two components provided a total effective fixed interest rate of 4.7245%.

With the enactment of the Federal Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, the Development Corporation’s tax-exempt bond
did not have the same value as it did prior to this act due to the corporate maximum tax rate being reduced
to 21% from 35%. As such, SunTrust adjusted the interest rate on the SWAP to be 77% of the 30-day LIBOR,
fixed at 3.30%, plus 93.584% of 1.85%, equaling 1.7313%. The sum of these two components provided a
total effective fixed interest of 5.0313%.

Effective April 1, 2022, the Development Corporation restructured the existing variable rate COPS as allowed
under the master trust indenture. The existing COPS were restructured as a non-bank qualified tax-exempt
plain refinancing with an interest rate of 3.330%. The existing maturity and principal payment requirements
were not modified.
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Factors Impacting Future Periods

The most significant factor in the Development Corporation’s economic position relates to the College’s
ability to recruit and retain high quality students to live in the student resident facilities. Being able to
maintain a high occupancy rate (96% or higher) is critical for the housing operations to be able to fully cover
the annual debt costs.

Outlined below, are the student residence facilities’ annual average occupancy statistics, for the past ten
years. In five of the ten years, the occupancy rate exceeded the 96% target.

Average Number

Year Ended June 30, Enrolled Housing of Students Occupancy

(Fall Semester) Students Capacity Living in Housing Rate
2016 863 638 638 100%
2017 861 638 637 99%
2018 836 638 657 103%
2019 807 638 621 97%
2020 706 638 566 89%
2021 646 629 353 56%
2022 633 629 471 75%
2023 671 629 527 79%
2024 712 586 (*) 556 95%
2025 860 629(**) 560 89%

(*) During the 2023-2024 academic year, some residential facilities were taken off-line resulting in a
decreased capacity by 278 beds. The College accommodated the displaced students utilizing 235 off campus
hotels.

(**) During the 2024-2025 academic year, the College entered into an agreement with the University of
South Florida Sarasota-Manatee (USF) campus to occupy 90 beds in their housing facilities. This and a 43-
bed remodeled dormitory building coming back online, allowed New College to reduce the contracted hotel
rooms from 235 to 133 beds.

For the 2025-2026 academic year, New College continues to advance the transformation strategy initiated in
2023-2024. As a result, the College has received a significantly higher number of enrollment deposits from
incoming first-year and transfer students compared to previous years. The projected enroliment for Fall
2025 is approximately 900 students.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the New College of Florida Development
Corporation’s finances for all those with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided

in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Development
Corporation at 5800 Bay Shore Road, Sarasota, Florida 34243.
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New College of Florida Development Corporation

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2025 AND 2024

ASSETS
Current assets

Due from New College of Florida
Note receivable, current

Other assets
Note receivable, less current portion
Due from New College of Florida

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Current liabilities

Accrued interest payable
Current maturities of long-term debt

Long-term liabilities
Long-term debt, net of unamortized discount
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Restricted

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

See Notes to Financial Statements.

2025 2024
149,434 158,716
1,728,764 1,722,017
1,878,198 1,880,733
15,734,117 16,565,864
736,564 1,026,564
16,470,681 17,592,428
18,348,879 19,473,161
149,433 158,715
1,160,000 1,115,000
1,309,433 1,273,715
16,763,173 17,920,681
18,072,606 19,194,396
276,273 278,765
18,348,879 19,473,161
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New College of Florida Development Corporation

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2025 AND 2024

2025 2024
Operating revenues
Net income from New College of Florida $ 624,030 $ 672,660
Total operating revenues 624,030 672,660
Operating expenses
Interest expense 599,890 637,020
Other expenses 24,140 35,640
Total operating expenses 624,030 672,660
Operating income - -
Nonoperating expense
Amortization of bond discount 2,492 2,492
Total nonoperating expense 2,492 2,492
Change in net position (2,492) (2,492)
Net position, beginning of the year 278,765 281,257
Net position, end of the year $ 276,273 % 278,765

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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New College of Florida Development Corporation

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2025 AND 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income from housing operations
Payments for goods and services

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid on debt
Principal payments on debt
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

Net change in cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating
activities
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities
Interest paid on debt
Amortization of lease
Changes in assets and liabilities
Due from New College of Florida
Accrued interest payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

See Notes to Financial Statements.

2025 2024

1,739,030 % 1,737,660
(24,140) (35,640)
1,714,890 1,702,020
(599,890) (637,020)
(1,115,000) (1,065,000)
(1,714,890) (1,702,020)
-8 -

-3 -

599,890 637,020
825,000 790,000
299,282 283,867
(9,282) (8,867)
1,714,890 % 1,702,020

Page 11



Notes To Financial Statements

NOTE 1.

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

New College of Florida Development Corporation (the “Development Corporation”) was
created on November 4, 2005 by the New College of Florida Board of Trustees. The
Development Corporation is a direct support organization and component unit of New College
of Florida (the “College”) and is a not-for-profit corporation organized under the provisions of
Florida Statutes, Chapter 617, as a direct support organization of the College as defined by
Florida Statutes 1004.28. The Development Corporation was established to provide aid in the
form of money and other forms of property and services to the College. The Development
Corporation also has the authority to issue revenue bonds, certificates of participation, or
other forms of indebtedness upon the approval of the College’s Board of Trustees, as well as
to enter into agreements to finance, design, construct, lease, lease-purchase, and purchase
and/or operate facilities necessary and desirable to serve the needs of the College.

Specifically, the operations consist of contracting for the design and construction of student
residential housing and the issuance of bonded debt to finance such construction. As such, the
Development Corporation supervises and accounts for the respective construction. With the
completion of the student residential housing, the Development Corporation transferred the
value of the completed buildings to the College to operate in return for a direct financing lease
(“Master Operating Lease”). Accordingly, the College leases the respective facility from the
Development Corporation in an amount equal to the net rental proceeds. These net rental
proceeds are then used to service the outstanding debt and pay for the operating costs of the
Development Corporation. The Development Corporation issued Certificates of Participation,
Series 2006 (“COPS”) in the amount of $30,110,000 during the year ended June 30, 2006 and
were remarketed on April 14, 2012 and April 1, 2022. The proceeds were used to pay for
construction and renovation of student residences as well as to service the related debt and to
refinance certain outstanding obligations of the College.

During the 2024-2025 academic year, the College was forced to permanently retire the
Johnson Hall, Bates Hall, and Rothenberg Hall residential facilities. In addition, the modular
units that had been acquired to offset some of the lost residential capacity sustained damage
from Hurricanes Helene and Milton and have likewise been retired from service.

To mitigate the residential capacity shortage, the College reconditioned and brought B Dorm
Hall back online and secured agreements with the University of South Florida Sarasota-
Manatee (USF) and nearby hotels to provide supplemental student housing.

The governing body of the Development Corporation is its Board of Directors (the “Board"”).
The Board is composed of at least five but no more than seven Directors. The Development
Corporation is managed, supervised, and controlled by its Board subject to applicable law and
the powers and duties reserved in the New College Board of Trustees and the President of the
College.
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NOTE 1.

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Based on the application of the criteria described in the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (“GASB") Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting standards,
the Development Corporation is included within the financial statements of the College as a
blended component unit for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024.

Basis of Accounting and Presentation

The Development Corporation’s accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America applicable to colleges and universities as prescribed
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable
measurement focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of
resources being measured such as current financial resources or economic resources. The
basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the
financial statements.

The Development Corporation’s financial statements are presented using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains,
losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are
recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and
liabilities resulting from nonexchange activities are generally recognized when all applicable
eligibility requirements, including time requirements, are met.

The statements of net position is presented in a classified format to distinguish between
current and noncurrent assets and liabilities. When both restricted and unrestricted resources
are available to fund certain programs, it is the Development Corporation’s policy to first apply
the restricted resources to such programs followed by the use of the unrestricted resources.

Cash

When applicable, amounts reported as cash consist of cash in demand accounts and
unexpended bond proceeds held by a trustee. Cash in demand accounts are held in banks
qualified in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 280, Florida Statutes, as a public
depository. Deposits are fully collateralized by a mutual collateral pool as provided by Florida
Statutes.

Note Receivable
The note receivable whose assets are restricted is recorded by the Development Corporation
at the capitalized amount of the completed student residences and renovation projects, which

approximates the sum of the minimum lease payments of the Master Operating Lease.

For the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, no depreciation expense was recorded as the
Development Corporation held no assets used in its operations.
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NOTE 1.

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Due from the College

The amount due from the College represents the amount transferred to escrow on behalf of the
College to refund the 1996B and 1998 bonds as outlined in the COPS, series 2006. The amount
due from the College is being repaid at the same rate that the outstanding amount of principal
on the COPS is being repaid.

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt includes principal amounts of COPS issued, which are reported net of the
unamortized discount. The unamortized discount is being amortized over the life of COPS
using the straight-line method. The use of the straight-line method is not materially different
from the interest method for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024.

Net Position

Net position, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or
grantor imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net position and changes therein are classified and
reported as follows:

Restricted - Restricted net position is reserved for the construction projects and purpose of the
Development Corporation by the bondholder.

Net Income from New College of Florida

Net income from New College of Florida relates to payments received on the Master Ground
Lease further discussed in Note 2. Net income from New College of Florida is recognized when
earned under the terms of the Master Ground Lease and consists of the following components
for the years ended June 30:

2025 2024
Cash Income from Housing Operations $ 1,748312 % 1,746,527
Change in Due from New College of Florida (9,282) (8,867)
Principal Payments Made (1,115,000) (1,065,000)
Net Lease Income from New College of Florida  $ 624,030 $ 672,660

Tax Status

The Development Corporation is generally exempt from federal income and state income
taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and comparable state law. The
Development Corporation is not classified as a private foundation within the meaning of
Section 509(a) of the IRC but is a corporation described under section 509(a)(3). The IRC
provides for taxation of unrelated business income under certain circumstances.
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NOTE 1.

NOTE 2.

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP”) requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 21, 2025 the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

The corresponding charges for supplemental housing continue to be recorded as Housing
Revenues. This arrangement has persisted into the 2025-2026 academic year and does not
currently appear to affect the College’s ability to meet its obligations under the Note
Receivable.

NOTE RECEIVABLE

As a condition of the financing arrangement, the College entered into a ground lease with the
New College of Florida Property Corporation (the “Property Corporation”). The College leases
the respective project land on its campus to the Property Corporation, which assigned all of its
interests in the lease to the Development Corporation. The Property covered by the Master
Ground Lease together with the improvements (i.e. student housing) thereon is leased back to
the College to manage and operate through the Master Operating Lease and Facilities
Sublease and Management Agreement. The payments on the lease are equal to the amount of
the annual debt service requirements of the related bond debt and operating costs of the
Development Corporation. The lease shall terminate on the date on which all certificates and
obligations under any related financing documents are paid in full, at which time title passes to
the College. The Development Corporation classifies this agreement as a note receivable.
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NOTE 2.

NOTE 3.

NOTE RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

At June 30, 2025, aggregate future minimum note payments are $21,696,666, with $4,233,785
in unearned income and a net value of $17,462,881. At June 30, 2024, aggregate future
minimum note payments are $23,418,684, with $5,130,803 of unearned income and a net
value of $18,287,881. Future minimum amounts to be received are as follows:

Aggregate
Future Minimum
Note Payments

2026 $ 1,728,764
2027 1,748,638
2028 1,756,763
2029 1,768,098
2030 1,782,477
Thereafter 12,911,926

$ 21,696,666

These aggregate future minimum note payments approximate the schedule of annual debt
service requirements as adjusted for reductions in the amounts due from the College for the
refunded bonds.

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Bonds payable activity for the year ended June 30, 2025 were as follows:

Amounts Due

Beginning Ending Within One
Balance Additions Payments Balance Year
COPS, Series 2006 $ 19,065,000 $ - $ (1,115,000) $ 17,950,000 $ 1,160,000
Less Unamortized
Discount (29,319) - 2,492 (26,827) -
$ 19,035,681 $ - $ (1,112,508) $ 17,923,173 $ 1,160,000

Bonds payable activity for the year ended June 30, 2024 were as follows:
AmountsDue

Beginning Ending Within One
Balance Additions Payments Balance Year
COPS, Series 2006 $ 20,130,000 $ - $ (1,065,000) $ 19,065,000 $ 1,115,000
Less Unamortized
Discount (31,811) - 2,492 (29,319) -
$ 20,098,189 $ - $ (1,062,508) $ 19,035,681 $ 1,115,000

On April 7, 2006, the Development Corporation issued a variable rate COPS, series 2006 in the
amount of $30,110,000. The proceeds derived from the sale of the COPS were used to finance
the acquisition, construction, renovation, and equipping of apartment-style student residence
facilities. The COPS mature in 2036 and were issued at a discount of $74,748.
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NOTE 3.

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

In April 2012, the Development Corporation, through a resolution of the Board, restructured
the existing variable rate COPS as allowed under the master trust indenture. The existing COPS
were restructured as a non-bank qualified tax-exempt variable facility (New College of Florida
Development Corporation Series 2012 conversion) with an interest rate of 77% of the sum of
the 30-day LIBOR plus 185 basis points. Effective April 1, 2018, the variable interest related to
the conversion increased approximately 94% the sum of the 30-day LIBOR plus 185 basis
points, which was 1.92% at June 30, 2021.

The revised swap agreement associated with the original restructuring is for ten years and
expired on April 1, 2022. However, the existing maturity and principal payment requirements
pursuant to the original 2006 debt issuance were not restructured.

On April 1, 2022, the Development Corporation, through a resolution of the Board,
restructured the existing variable rate COPS as allowed under the master trust indenture. The
existing COPS were restructured as a non-bank qualified tax-exempt plain refinancing (New
College of Florida Development Corporation Series 2022 refunding) with an interest rate of
3.330%. The existing maturity and principal payment requirements pursuant to the original
2006 debt issuance were not restructured.

Revenues from the student residence facilities of the College are pledged to pay rent to the
Development Corporation or its assignees equal to the debt service on the debt.

The table that follows represents debt service payments on the fixed rate debt as of June 30,
2025:

Principal Interest Net Cash Flows

2026 $ 1,160,000 $ 568,764 $ 1,728,764
2027 1,220,000 528,637 1,748,637
2028 1,270,000 486,763 1,756,763
2029 1,325,000 443,098 1,768,098
2030 1,385,000 397,477 1,782,477
2031-35 7,910,000 1,228,687 9,138,687
2036-37 3,680,000 93,240 3,773,240
$ 17,950,000 $ 3,746,666 $ 21,696,666

Total interest expense incurred for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, was
approximately $600,000 and $637,000, respectively.
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MAULDIN & JENKINS

CPAs & ADVISORS

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
New College of Florida Development Corporation
Sarasota, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New College of Florida
Development Corporation (the “Development Corporation”), a component unit of New College of Florida, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Development Corporation’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated October 21, 2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Development
Corporation's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Development Corporation’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Development Corporation’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

1401 MANATEE AVENUE WEST, SUITE 1200 « BRADENTON, FLORIDA 34205 « 941-747-4483 « FAX 941-747-6035 « www.mjcpa.com
MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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MAULDIN & JENKINS
Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Development Corporation's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Development Corporation’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

N # Gortinas, K5C

Bradenton, Florida
October 21, 2025
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Form 990

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE COPY

Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

made public.

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

| OMB No. 1545-0047

2024

Open to Public

Inspection

A For the 2024 calendar year, or tax year beginning

07/01

, 2024, and ending

06/30

,20 25

B Check if applicable:
|___l Address change

D Name change

D Initial return

D Final return/terminated
D Amended return

[:] Application pending

C Name of organizaton NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Doing business as

D Employer identification number

20-4398131

Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address)

5800 BAY SHORE ROAD

Room/suite

E Telephone number

(941) 487-4323

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code
SARASOTA, FL 34243

G Gross receipts $

624,030

F Name and address of principal officer: CHRISTIE FITZ-PATRICK
SAME AS C ABOVE

I  Tax-exempt status:

501(c)(3) [1501(0) ( ) (insert no.) [ ] 4947(a)(1) or []527

J  Website:

NA

H(a) Is this a group return for subordinates? D Yes No

H(b) Are all subordinates included? I:] Yes D No
If “No,” attach a list. See instructions.

H(c) Group exemption number

K Form of organization: Corporation [:]Trust I:] Association D Other

I L Year of formation:

2005 | M State of legal domicile:

FL

Summary
1  Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: DIRECT SUPPORT ORGANIZATION TO PROVIDE
3 AID IN THE FORM OF MONEY AND OTHER FORMS OF PROPERTY AND SERVICES TO NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, A
§ MEMBER OF THE FLORIDA STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM.
§ 2  Check this box []if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
& | 8 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) . 3 6
:2 4  Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) 4 2
2| 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2024 (Part V, line 2a) 5 0
:E 6  Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) L. 6 6
< | 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 7a 0
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part |, line 11 7b 0
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIIl, line 1h) . 0 0
g 9  Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) . 672,660 624,030
2 | 10  Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) . 0 0
141 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9¢c, 10c, and 11e) . 0 0
12  Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIlI, column (A), line 12) 672,660 624,030
13  Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) . 0 0
14  Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) : 0
@ 15  Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) 0 0
2 | 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e) 0 0
é’- b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) 0
W47  Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24¢) . 675,152 626,522
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 675,152 626,522
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 (2,492) (2,492)
s § Beginning of Current Year End of Year
8520 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 19,473,161 18,348,879
<% 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) . . 19,194,396 18,072,606
23|22  Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from hne 20 278,765 276,273

*
Q
=3
[
=
c
=
o
2
[=]
(1)
x

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is

true, correct, and com, Iete.‘Declaration of preparer than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.
| A7V U f2r s =
Slgn Sighaturk of officer Date /
Here CHRISTIE FITZ-PATRICK, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Type or print name and title
Pai d Print/Type preparer’s name Preparer’s signature Date Check D if | PTIN
Preparer BRIAN CARTER BRIAN OARTER 11/04/2025 self-employed|  P00536712
Use Only Firm'sname  MAULDIN & JENKINS, LLC Firm’s EIN 58-0692043
Firm’s address 1401 MANATEE AVENUE WEST, SUITE 1200, BRADENTON, FL 34205 Phone no. (941) 747-4483
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions Yes [INo
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Cat. No. 11282Y Form 990 (2024)



Form 990 (2024) Page 2

14} Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line inthisPartit . . . . . . . . . . . . . []

1  Briefly describe the organization’s mission:

2  Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 0or990-EZ? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .+ . .+ .« .+ .« .+« [Yes [¥INo
If “Yes,” describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
services? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... ... .. . o . o o . o < v IYes [¥INo
If “Yes,” describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: ) (Expenses $ 602,382 including grants of $ 0 ) (Revenue $ 624,030 )

4b (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4c (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)
(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
4e Total program service expenses 602,382
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Form 990 (2024)
=Tl Checklist of Required Schedules

1

10

11

—,

12a

13
14a

15

16

17

18

19

20a

21

Page 3

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule A .

Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? See instructions .

Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposmon to
candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part| .

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h)
election in effect during the tax year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part Il . .

Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membershtp dues
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-19? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part Il

Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors
have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? /f
“Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part |

Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Il

Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part Il .

Did the organization report an amount in Part X hne 21, for escrow or custodlal account Inabmty, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or
debt negotiation services? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IV

Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments
or in quasi-endowments? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part V .

If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is “Yes,” then complete Schedule D Parts VI
VI, VI, X, or X, as applicable.

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part VI Lo . .. ..
Did the organization report an amount for investments— other securities in Part X ||ne 12 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VIl .

Did the organization report an amount for investments —program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Vill .

Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 16? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IX .

Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 257 If “Yes,” comp/ete Schedule D, Part X
Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s fiability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X
Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If “Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Parts Xl and Xil

Was the organization included in consohdated lndependent aud:ted fmancnal statements for the tax year’? If
“Yes,” and if the organization answered “No” to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts X/ and Xll is optional

Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule E

Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?

Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaklng,
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts  and IV .

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV .o

Did the organization report on Part 1X, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts lll and IV. ..
Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I. See instructions .
Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contrlbutlons on
Part VI, lines 1c and 8a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I . .

Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII Ilne 9a’7

If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part Il e e

Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? /f “Yes,” comp/ete Schedu/e H. .

If “Yes” to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financiat statements to this return'7

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts {and Il .

Yes | No
1 v
2 v
3 v
4 v
5 v
6 v
7 v
8 v
9 v

11a v
11b v
11c v
11d| v

11e v
11f v
12a| v

12b v
13 v
14a v
14b v
15 v
16 v
17 v
18 v
19 v
20a v
20b

21 v
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Form 990 (2024)
218l  Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Page 4

Yes | No
22  Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 2? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and IlI . 22 v
23 Did the organization answer “Yes” to Part VI, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, about compensatlon of the
organization’s current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J . C e e e e e e e e e 23 | v
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 If “Yes,” answer lines 24b
through 24d and complete Schedule K. If “No,” go to line 25a . 24al| v
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? . 24b v
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? e e e e e . 24¢ v
d Did the organization act as an “on behalf of” issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? . 24d v
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c){(29} organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part | . 25a v
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ?
If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part | . e e e e e e 25b v
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current
or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part Il 26 v
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key
employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee
member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these
persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part Il C e e e e
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties? (See the Schedule
L, Part IV, instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions).
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? if
“Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . . e e e e e 28a v
b A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If “Yes,” comp/ete Schedule L, Part IV . 28b v
¢ A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in line 28a or 28b? If
“Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . e e e e e e e 28¢ v
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in noncash contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M 29 v
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
conservation contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M e e e e e 30 v
31  Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If “Yes,” complete Schedule N, Part! | 31 v
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule N, Part Il . 32 v
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity dlsregarded as separate from the organlzatlon under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part | . 33 v
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If “Yes,” complete Schedu/e R Part 1, //I
orlV, and Part V, line 1 34 | v
35a Did the organization have a controlled entlty within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? .o 35a v
b If “Yes” to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction W|th a
controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . 35b
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable
related organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . . 36 v
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organlzatlon
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI 37 v
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and
197 Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O . . 38 | v
XA Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V ..o g
Yes | No

Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . . 1a 0
Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . 1b 0
Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and

reportable gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners?
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EZ3  Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued)

2a
b
3a

b
4a

b

5a

6a

0T
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12a
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14a
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Page 5

Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return | 2a

If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns?
Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? .
If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If “No” to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O
At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over,
a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)?
If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? .

Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction?
If “Yes” to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?

Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $1 00 000 and drd the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? . .

If “Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not tax deductible? e e e e e .

Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c)

Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided to the payor? . e e e e e e e e

If “Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provrded’7 .

Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which |t was
required to file Form 82827 . e

If “Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year I 7d ]

6a

Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract?
Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? .

If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required?
If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C?
Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? .

Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.

Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 49667 . .

Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person’7

Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:

Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIli, line 12 10a
Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIil, line 12, for public use of ciub facmtres 10b
Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:

Gross income from members or shareholders . 11a
Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or pard to other sources
against amounts due or received from them.) . 11b

Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417

If “Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year .
Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state?

12b

Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O

Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans

Enter the amount of reserves on hand

Did the organization receive any payments for rndoor tannlng services durlng the tax year'7 .

13b

13c

If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If “No,” provide an explanation on Schedule O .

Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or

excess parachute payment(s) during the year? .
If “Yes,” see the instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.

Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income?

If “Yes,” complete Form 4720, Schedule O.

Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, or any disqualified or other person, engage in any activities

that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952, or 49537
If “Yes,” complete Form 6069.

14a

14b

Form 990 (2024)



Form 990 (2024) Page 6

iclad'll Governance, Management, and Disclosure. For each “Yes” response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a “No”
response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in thisPartVvli . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No

1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year. . 1a 6
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar
committee, explain on Schedule O.

b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent . 1b 2

2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? g o= 5 ow w ; e .

3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the dlrect

supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? .
Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed?
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? .
Did the organization have members or stockholders?
a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appomt
one or more members of the governing body? . . . . . . . . . . . . 7a | v
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? . . . . ¢ % i @ “ w5 s @ . 7b | v

8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken durlng

the year by the following:

a The governing body? . . . . e 8a | v

b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body’7 Lo 8b v

9 s there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the organization’s mailing address? If “Yes,” provide the names and addresses on Schedule O . . . . 9 v
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . . 10a v
b If “Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governlng the actlvmes of such chapters
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? 10b

11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? |11a| ¢
b Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No,” go to line 13 . . . . 12a| v
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflrcts” 12b| v

¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? /f “Yes,”
describe on Schedule O how thiswas done. . . . . . . . . . . .« .« . .« .« .« . ... 12¢

13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? . . . . e ST 13
14  Did the organization have a written document retention and destructlon pollcy’? e 14
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by

independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

a The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official . . . . . . . . . . . . 15a v
b Other officers or key employees of the organization . . . T 15b v

If “Yes” to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O See |nstructrons
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement
with a taxable entity during theyear? . . . . . 2 = 2 o® B . . . 16a v
b If “Yes,” did the organization follow a written pollcy or procedure requiring the organrzatlon to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16b

Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed NONE
18  Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)
(3)s only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
] Own website [] Another’s website Uponrequest  [] Other (explain on Schedule O)
19  Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy,
and financial statements available to the public during the tax year.

20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization’s books and records.
MELISSA SHIPPEE, 5800 BAY SHORE ROAD, SARASOTA, FL 34243, (941) 487-4323

[
AN

G
ANANANAN

~NOo G

ANANAN
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Form 990 (2024) Page 7
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIl . . . . . s s om o«
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization’s tax year.

e List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

e List all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See the instructions for definition of “key employee.”

e List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, box 6 of Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than
$100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.
[1 Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.
©

(A) ®) Position ©) ® 7
. (do not check more than cone .
Name and title Average box, unless person is both an Reportabl_e Repor’tab[e Estimated amount
hours officer and a director/trustee) compensation compensation of otherl
per week e=|slol=le<|T from the from related compensation
(list any P a a 3|2 [3& |8 [organization (W-2/ | organizations (W-2/ from the
hoursfor S 5|2 |8 | o 2 2|3 1099-MISC/ 1099-MISC/ organization and
related (2§ |5 | 3 }:g ad 1099-NEC) 1099-NEC) related organizations
orgzﬁr:ﬂom S g % g é
& | =
dotted line) § 5, ° §
s 2
&
__(1) RICHARD CORCORAN 0.2 )
CHAIR 40.0 v 4 0 1,048,891 57,646
(2) FITZ-PATRICK CHRISTIE 0.2
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 40.0 (4 0 206,708 40,296
(3) SHIPPEE MELISSA 3.8 )
SECRETARY/TREASURER 40.0 4 4 0 181,415 58,796
(4) GRUTERS SYDNEY 0.2
DIRECTOR 40.0 v 0 201,000 0
(5) RANCOURT DAVID 0.2
DIRECTOR 40.0 v 0 201,000 0
(6) CHRISTALDI RON 0.2
VICE CHAIR 0.0 4 4 0 0 0
(7) MCDONALD JAMES 0.2
DIRECTOR 0.0 v 0 0 0
(C)]
(9)
(19)
a
[
a8
(14)

Form 990 (2024)



Form 990 (2024) Page 8
:ETsd"/Il Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

©)
Position
@ ® {do not check more than one ©) ® ®
Name and title Average box, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable Estimated amount
hours officer and a director/trustee) compensation compensation of other
per week c=slslol=laz]n from the from related compensation
(istany |53 |2 |2 |&|23&|Q |organization (W-2/ |organizations (W-2/ from the
hoursfor |5 = | & S 1le % § g 1099-MISC/ 1099-MISC/ organization and
related |28 |3 [R5 1099-NEC) 1099-NEC) | related organizations
organizations| 2 = | B g S
below G| e S
dotted line) f:g' @ 2
® 8
i g
(15) i
(16)
(a7)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)
(25)
1ib Subtotal . . . . L e e 0 1,839,014 156,738
¢ Total from contmuatlon sheets to Part VlI Sectlon A e e 0 0 0
d Total (add lines tband 1ic). . . 0 1,839,014 156,738
2  Total number of individuals (including but not Ilmlted to those I|sted above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization 0
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual . .
4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensatlon from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,0007 If “Yes,” comp/ete Schedule J for such
individual .
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual

for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.
(A} (B) ©
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
NONE
2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who

received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization o

Form 990 (2024)



Form 990 (2024)

A"/} Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII .

Page 9

O

(A)
Total revenue

(B)
Related or exempt
function revenue

©)
Unrelated
business revenue

(D)
Revenue excluded
from tax under
sections 512-514

¢ »| 1a Federated campaigns . 1a
g § b Membership dues 1b
G g ¢ Fundraising events . 1c
£ f d Related organizations . id
o= e Government grants (contrlbutlons) 1e
‘,_’:" % f All other contributions, gifts, grants,
S B and similar amounts not included above | {f
é g g Noncash contributions included in
o lines 1a—-1f . . 1g |$
S ®| h Total. Add lines 1a-1f . 0
Business Code
_g 2a HOUSING OPERATIONS 611710 624,030 624,030
§gl b
»n c c
£ S d
S 0
2| e
a f All other program service revenue . 0 0 0 0
g Total. Add lines 2a-2f . 624,030
3 Investment income (including d|V|dends |nterest and
other similar amounts) . e e
4  Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds
5 Royalties ..
(i) Real (ii) Personal
6a Grossrents 6a
b Less: rental expenses | 6b
¢ Rental income or (loss) | 6¢ 0 0
d Net rental income or (loss) .. . s e
7a Gross amount from (i) Securities (ii) Other
sales of assets
other than inventory | 7a
8 b Less: cost or other basis
g and sales expenses 7b
> ¢ Gainor (loss) . 7c 0 0
n:. d Net gain or (loss) .
g 8a Gross income from fundralsmg
o events (not including $
of contributions repc;r-féa“c_)-ﬁulfﬁ—e_
1c). See Part IV, line 18 8a
b Less: direct expenses . 8b
¢ Netincome or (loss) from fundralsmg events
9a Gross income from gaming
activities. See Part IV, line 19 9a
b Less: direct expenses . 9%b
¢ Netincome or (loss) from gaming act|V|t|es :
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances 10a
b Less: cost of goods sold 10b
¢ Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory . :
» Business Code
3 o| 11a
@3y
8o
58|
o & d All other revenue . 0 0 0 0
= e Total. Add lines 11a-11d . 0
12  Total revenue. See instructions 624,030 624,030 0 0

Enrm QA0 o001



Form 990 (2024)

=lgd) @ Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Page 10

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX .. O
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 7b, Total e(QrLenses Progral('r?)service Manage«r%)ent and Funcg'raa)ising
8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. expenses general expenses expenses
1  Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part 1V, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line 22 . .
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and
foreign individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16
4  Benefits paid to or for members :
5 Compensation of current officers, dlrectors
trustees, and key employees .o
6  Compensation not included above to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) .
7  Other salaries and wages
8 Pension plan accruals and contrlbutlons (lnclude
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions)
9  Other employee benefits .
10  Payroll taxes . e
11  Fees for services (nonemployees):
a Management
b Legal
¢ Accounting 16,000 16,000
d Lobbying . .
e Professional fundralsmg services. See Part IV hne 17
f Investment management fees 8,000 8,000
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A), amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule O.) 0 0 0 0
12  Advertising and promotion
13  Office expenses
14  Information technology
15 Royalties .
16  Occupancy
17  Travel
18 Payments of travel or entertalnment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19  Conferences, conventions, and meetings
20 Interest . 599,890 599,890
21  Payments to affiliates .
22  Depreciation, depletion, and amortlzatlon 2,492 2,492
23 Insurance . e
24  Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered
above. (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A), amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.)
a MISCELLANEOUS 140 140
b -
c
d
e All other expenses 0 0 0 0
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 626,522 602,382 24,140 0
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the

organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation. Check here [] if
following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

Form 990 (2024)



Form 990 (2024)

Balance Sheet

Page 11

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X .. O
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—non-interest-bearing ; 1
2  Savings and temporary cash investments . 2
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 3
4  Accounts receivable, net : 4
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former of'flcer dlrector
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons ; ol 5 0
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined
under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) ol 6 0
21 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
§ 8 Inventories for sale or use . 8
< | 9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 9
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part Vl of ScheduleD . . . [40a 0
Less: accumulated depreciation . . . . . [10b 0[10c 0
11 Investments—publicly traded securities 11
12  Investments—other securities. See Part IV, line 11 0| 12 0
13  Investments—program-related. See Part IV, line 11 . 0] 13 0
14 Intangible assets 14
15  Other assets. See Part IV, Ilne 11 . 19,473,161| 15 18,348,879
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal Ime 33) 19,473,161| 16 18,348,879
17  Accounts payable and accrued expenses . 158,715 | 17 149,433
18 Grants payable . 18
19  Deferred revenue ; 19
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities . . 19,035,681 | 20 17,923,173
21  Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21
4 22 Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,
E frustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
% controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 0| 22 0
3|23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25  Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D e e e e e ol 25 0
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 19,194,396 | 26 18,072,606
8 Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here |:]
e and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
‘—‘: 27 Net assets without donor restrictions 27
g 28 Net assets with donor restrictions 278,765| 28 276,273
= Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958 check here |:|
U; and complete lines 29 through 33.
g 29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds . ; 29
"qw'; 30 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 30
2 31 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . 31
% |32  Total net assets or fund balances . : 278,765 | 32 276,273
Z | 33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances . 19,473,161 | 33 18,348,879

Form 990 (2024)



Form 990 (2024)
=Ts® (W Reconciliation of Net Assets

Page 12

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Xi .. oL
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) . 1 624,030
2  Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2 626,522
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 3 (2,492)
4  Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X Ilne 32 column (A)) 4 278,765
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 5
6 Donated services and use of facilities 6
7 Investment expenses . 7
8  Prior period adjustments . . . 8
9  Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explam on Schedule O) 9 0
10  Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X lme
32, column (B)) . : - 10 276,273
Financial Statements and Reportlng
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Xl|

2a

3a

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: [] Cash Accrual  []Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain on
Schedule O.

Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? .
If “Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both.

[1Separate basis  [] Consolidated basis []Both consolidated and separate basis

Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant?

If “Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audlted on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both.

Separate basis  []Consolidated basis []Both consolidated and separate basis

If “Yes” to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of
the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on
Schedule O.

As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F?

If “Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audxts’? If the orgamza’uon dld not undergo the
required audit or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits .

3a v

3b

Form 990 (2024)



SCHEDULE A | OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990)

Public Charity Status and Public Support

Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 20-4398131
Reason for Public Charity Status. (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)
1 [ A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b){(1)(A)(i).
2 [] A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)
3 [ A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).
4 [] A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(jii). Enter the
hospital’s name, city, and state:
] An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part Il.)

6 [ Afederal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

7 [ An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170(b)(1)(A){vi). (Complete Part Il.)

1 A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part I1.)

9 [an agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university: :

[] An organization that normally receives (1) more than 3313% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 33'3% of its

support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part Ill.)

11 [ An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check
the box on lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the
supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

2024

Open to Public
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10

b [ Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

¢ [ Type lll functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d [ Type lll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e [ Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type ll, Type llI
functionally integrated, or Type Il non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

f Enter the number of supported organizations . . . .

g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

(i) Name of supported organization (ii) EIN (iii) Type of organization | (iv) Is the organization | {v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of
(described on lines 1-10 | listed in your governing support (see other support (see
above (see instructions)) document? instructions) instructions)

Yes No
A) NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 5 SCHOOL. SECTION

90-0057281 | "7OEMAM- v 0 0
(8)
©)
(D)
(E)
Total 0 0
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat. No. 11285F Schedule A (Form 990) 2024



Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 Page 2
Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under
Part lIl. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part IIl.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2020 (b) 2021 (c) 2022 (d) 2023 (e) 2024 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any “unusual grants.”) .
2 Tax revenues levied for the
organization’s benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge .

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3

5 The portion of total contributions by
each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column (f) .

6  Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2020 (b) 2021 (c) 2022 (d) 2023 (e) 2024 (f) Total
7  Amounts from line 4 i e
8 Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similar sources .

9 Netincome from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
is regularly carried on .

10  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part VL) .

11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10

12  Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) . . . . . 12 [

13  First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth or fn‘th tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here . . . T T T T N T e

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

14  Public support percentage for 2024 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column (f)) . . . . 14 %

15  Public support percentage from 2023 Schedule A, Part il, line14 . . . 15 %

16a 33/3% support test—2024. If the organization did not check the box on llne 13 and I|ne 14 is 3313% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . S B

b 3313% support test—2023. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and I|ne 15 is 331 % or more, check

this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . . . . . . . . . [

17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2024. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is

10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in

Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization . . . . . . . . . . . . L L L L L L . L. . e e .. ... .. .. e O

b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2023. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 173, and line

15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain
in Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualiﬁes as a publicly supported

organization . . . - . . . - O
18 Private foundation. lf the orgamzatlon d:d not check a box on I|ne 13 16a 16b 17a or 17b check thls box and see
instructions . . . . . . . . . L L L L L L. L Lo e e e e e e e e e e e

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024
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:ETgd]ll  Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II.
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part I.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2020 (b) 2021 (c) 2022

(d) 2023

(e) 2024

(f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees
received. (Do not include any “unusual grants.”)

2  Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is related to the
organization’s tax-exempt purpose .

3  Gross receipts from activities that are not an
unrelated trade or business under section 513

4  Tax revenues levied for the
organization’s benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge .

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5.

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3
received from disqualified persons

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than disqualified
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year

¢ Add lines 7aand 7b

8 Public support. (Subtract line 7c from
line 6. .

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2020 (b) 2021 (c) 2022

(d) 2023

(e) 2024

(f) Total

9 Amounts from line 6

10a Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans, rents,
royalties, and income from similar sources

b Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975 .

¢ Add lines 10a and 10b

11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included on line 10b, whether
or not the business is regularly carried on

12  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part VL.) .

13  Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11,
and 12)) .

14  First 5 years. If the Fonn 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box and stop here |
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15  Public support percentage for 2024 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) . 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2023 Schedule A, Part lll, line 15 . 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2024 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) . 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2023 Schedule A, Part lli, line 17 . T 18 %
19a 3313% support tests—2024. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and hne 15 is more than 33'3%, and line
17 is not more than 3313%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization O
b 3313% support tests—2023. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 333%, and
line 18 is not more than 33%3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . []
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ]

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024
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Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box on line 12 of Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part I, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked box 12b, Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12¢, Part |, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Page 4

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

1

3a

4a

5a

9a

10a

Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing
documents? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain.

Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2).

Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If “Yes,” answer
lines 3b and 3c below.

Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI when and how the
organization made the determination.

Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use.

Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (“foreign supported organization”)? If
“Yes,” and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below.

Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes.

Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If “Yes,”
answer lines 5b and 5¢ below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action;(iii)
the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action

was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

Type | or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization’s organizing document?

Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization’s control?

Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (i) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited

by one or more of its supported organizations, or (i) other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity
with regard to a substantial contributor? If “Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990).

Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line
7? If “Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990).

Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations
described in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type Il non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? If “Yes,” answer line 10b below.

Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.)

Yes | No
1 v
2 v
3a v
3b
3c
4a v
4b
4c
5a v
5b
5c
6 v
7 v
8 v
9a v
9b v
9¢c v
10a v
10b

Schedule A {Form 990) 2024
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EGd\  Supporting Organizations (continued)

1
a

b
c

Page 5

Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and
11c below, the governing body of a supported organization?

A family member of a person described on line 11a above?
A 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? If “Yes” to line 11a, 11b, or 11c,
provide detail in Part VI.

Yes

No

i1a

11b

11c

Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s officers,
directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)
effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization’s activities. If the organization had more than one supported
organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year.

Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If “Yes,” explain in Part
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization.

Yes

No

Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? If “No,” describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the supported organization(s).

Yes

No

Section D. All Type lil Supporting Organizations

Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (i) copies of the
organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided?

Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s), or (i) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If “No,” explain in Part VI
how the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).

By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization’s supported organizations have
a significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role the organization’s
supported organizations played in this regard.

Yes

No

3

Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1
a
b
c

2

a

Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).

[J The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
[ The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.

[ The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental entity (see instructions).

Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below.

Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If “Yes,” then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities.

Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization’s
involvement, one or more of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If
“Yes,” explain in Part VI the reasons for the organization’s position that its supported organization(s) would
have engaged in these activities but for the organization’s involvement.

Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.

Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or
trustees of each of the supported organizations? If “Yes” or “No,” provide details in Part VI.

Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard.

Yes

No

3a

3b

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024
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Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1 [ Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See
instructions. All other Type Il non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A—Adjusted Net Income

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3.

Depreciation and depletion

(L RE-NEARE SR

DN WIN|-

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection
of gross income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of
property held for production of income (see instructions)

[}

7

Other expenses (see instructions)

~J

8

Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4)

Section B—Minimum Asset Amount

1

Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):

Average monthly value of securities

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

Average monthly cash balances

Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets

Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c)

o Q0o

Discount claimed for blockage or other factors
(explain in detail in Part VI):

Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

w

Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

W

»

Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,

see instructions).

Net value of non-exempt-use assets {subtract line 4 from line 3)

Multiply line 5 by 0.035.

N o

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

8

Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

DI~

Section C—Distributable Amount

Current Year

Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A)

Enter 0.85 of line 1.

Minimum asset amount for prior year {from Section B, line 8, column A)

Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

Income tax imposed in prior year

LB (WIN |-

OO |=

Distributable Amount. Subtract fine 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions).

[[1 Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally mtegrated Type II! suppomng organization

(see instructions).

Schedule A (Form 990) 2024
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Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

Section D—Distributions Current Year
1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 1
2  Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity 2
3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations 3
4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets 4
5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required —provide details in Part VI) 5
6 Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions. 6
7 Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6. 7
8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details in Part VI). See instructions. 8
9  Distributable amount for 2024 from Section C, line 6 9
10  Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount 10
(i) (i) iii)
Section E—Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distributions Underdistributions Distributable
Pre-2024 Amount for 2024

Distributable amount for 2024 from Section C, line 6

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2024
(reasonable cause required—explain in Part VI). See
instructions.

w

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2024

From 2019

From 2020

From 2021

From 2022

From 2023

Total of lines 3a through 3e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2024 distributable amount

Carryover from 2019 not applied (see instructions)

— |- | IR0 -n | alo oo

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.

F -

Distributions for 2024 from
Section D, line 7: $

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2024 distributable amount

Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2024, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result
greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

Remaining underdistributions for 2024. Subtract lines
3h and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero,
explain in Part VI. See instructions.

Excess distributions carryover to 2025. Add lines 3j
and 4c.

Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2020 .

Excess from 2021 .

Excess from 2022 .

Excess from 2023 .

o a0 oe

Excess from 2024 .

Schedule A (Form 980) 2024
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Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part I, line 10; Part Il, line 17a or 17b; Part
I, line 12: Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b,
3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)
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SCHEDULE D . .
(Form 990) Supplemental Financial Statements

(Rev. January 2025)

OMB No. 1545-0047

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990,
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.

Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 20-4398131

IZXXI Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part 1V, line 6.

(a) Donor advised funds (b} Funds and other accounts

1  Total number at end of year . . .
2  Aggregate value of contributions to (durlng year) .
3  Aggregate value of grants from (during year)
4  Aggregate value at end of year .
5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised

funds are the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legalcontrol? . . . . . . []J Yes [] No
6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used

only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
conferring impermissible private benefit? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . [JYes []No

Conservation Easements
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
[] Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) [ ] Preservation of a historically important land area
[] Protection of natural habitat [ Preservation of a certified historic structure

[] Preservation of open space
2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation

easement on the last day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year

a Total number of conservationeasements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2a
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements . . . . .. 2b
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure mcluded on hne 2a .o 2c
d Number of conservation easements included on line 2c acquired after July 25, 2006, and not

on a historic structure listed in the National Register . . . . . . . . . . . . . |9g

3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by
the organization during the tax year e e . .

4  Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located .

5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, |nspect|on handllng of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easementsitholds? . . . . . . . . . . . . . [JYes []No

6  Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing
conservation easements during the year .o
7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, mspectmg, handlmg of wolatnons and enforomg

conservation easements during the year . . . . $
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2d above satlsfy the reqwrements of sectlon 170(h)(4)( )
(i) and section 170(h}4)B)iH? . . . . . e .o . - [JYes []No

9 In Part XIll, describe how the organization reports conservatlon easements in its revenue and expense statement and balance
sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the
organization’s accounting for conservation easements.

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.
1a If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works
of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide in Part Xlll the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items.

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIll, line1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . §
(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X . . . . . . $

2 If the organization received or held works of art, hlstorlcal treasures or other S|m|Iar assets for flnanolal gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items.

a Revenueincluded on Form 990, Part Vlil, linet1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . %

b Assetsincluded in Form 990, PartX . . . . . . . . . . . . . . oo oo oo oo 0. 8

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat. No. 52283D Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025)




Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025) Page 2
Part ]| Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

a
b

c
4

5

Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply).

[1 Public exhibition d [ Loan or exchange program

[[] Scholarly research e [ Other
[1 Preservation for future generations

Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part
Xt

During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar

assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? . . [] Yes [ ] No

FId\"l Escrow and Custodial Arrangements

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form
990, Part X, line 21.

1a

o

-0 a0

2a
b

Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian, or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not
included on Form 980, PartX? . . . . . . . . . . . - - o« o« « . . . . . . . . . [OYes [1No

If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part Xlil and complete the followmg table.

Amount

Beginningbalance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0L 1c
Additions during theyear . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . L. 1d
Distributions duringtheyear . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1e
Ending balance . . . 1f
Did the organization |nclude an amount on Form 990 Part X Ime 21 for escrow or custodlal account liability? [] Yes [ No
If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIlil. Check here if the explanation has been provided in Part XIll . . . . Ol

Endowment Funds

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.

b

(a) Current year {b) Prior year (c) Two years back | (d) Three years back | (e} Four years back

Beginning of year balance
Contributions .

Net investment earnings, gams and
losses . Lo

Grants or scholarships

Other expenditures for facilities and
programs .

Administrative expenses .

End of year balance .
Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
Board designated or quasi-endowment %

Permanent endowment %

Term endowment %

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c¢ should equal 100%.

Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by: Yes | No
(i) Unrelated organizations? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . L ..o 3a(i)
(i) Related organizations? . . . e e e 3a(ii)
If “Yes” on line 3a(ii), are the related organlzatlons Ixsted as requwed on Schedule R’7 e e 3b

Describe in Part Xlll the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.

m Land, Buildings, and Equipment

Compilete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other basis | (b) Cost or other basis (¢} Accumulated {d) Book value
(investment) (other) depreciation
1a Land
b Buildings . . .
¢ Leasehold lmprovements
d Equipment
e Other

Total. Add lines 1a through 1e (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 10c, column (B)) .

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025)



Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025) Page 3
3ETg8Y/IH  Investments—Other Securities
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:
(including name of security) Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives :
(2) Closely held equity interests .
(3) Other

G
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 12, col. (B))
31gdY|I}  Investments—Program Related

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:
Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)
)
()
4
)
(6)
@)
@
©)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 13, col. (B))
Other Assets
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part 1V, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description (b) Book value
(1) INVESTMENT IN DIRECT FINANCING LEASE 17,462,881
(2) DUE FROM NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA 885,998
©)
4
(5)
(6)
@
(8)
(9)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 15,col. B)) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,348,879

Other Liabilities
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X,
line 25.

1. (a) Description of liability (b) Book value

(1) Federal income taxes

(
3
(

(

©)
)
®
©

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 25, col. (B)) . .
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part Xlll, provide the text of the footnote to the organlzatlon s flnan0|a! statements that reports the
organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIIl . []

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025)




Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025)

Page 4

s (M Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1  Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . 1 624,030
2  Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIIi, line 12:

a Net unrealized gains (losses) oninvestments . . . . . . . . . | 2a

b Donated services and use of facilites . . . . . . . . . . . | 2b

¢ Recoveries of prioryeargrants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . |2¢

d Other (DescribeinPartXill.y . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . |2

e Add lines 2a through 2d . 0
3  Subtract line 2e from line 1 . 624,030
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII hne 12 but not on hne 1

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line7b . . | 4a

b Other (DescribeinPartXill.)y . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . |4b

¢ Add lines 4a and 4b 4c 0

Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c (Th/s must equa/ Form 990 Partl l/ne 12 ) 5 624,030
Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1 | 626,522
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services and use of facilites . . . . . . . . . . . |2a

b Prior year adjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . |2b

¢ Otherlosses . . . e 2

d Other (Describe in Part XIII ) N L

e Add lines 2a through 2d . 0
3  Subtract line 2e from line 1 . . 626,522
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, I|ne 25 but not on Ilne 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line7b . . | 4a

b Other (DescribeinPart Xty . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . |4b

¢ Add lines 4a and 4b 4c 0
5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c (T h/s must equa/ Form 990 Part /, Ime 1 8 ) 5 626,522

=@l Supplemental Information

Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line

2: Part X|, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

'SEE STATEMENT

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025)



Part Xl Supplemental Information. Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll,

lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b; and Part
XIl, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

Return Reference - Identifier

Explanation

SCHEDULE D, PART X,
LINE 2 - PART X, LINE 2:

THE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION IS GENERALLY EXEMPT FROM FEDERAL INCOME AND STATE INCOME
TAXES UNDER SECTION 501(C)(3) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE AND COMPARABLE STATE LAW. THE
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION IS NOT CLASSIFIED AS A PRIVATE FOUNDATION WITHIN THE MEANING OF
SECTION 509(A) OF THE IRC BUT IS A CORPORATION DESCRIBED UNDER SECTION 509(A)(3). THE IRC
PROVIDES FOR TAXATION OF UNRELATED BUSINESS INCOME UNDER CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES.




SCHEDULE J
(Form 990)

(Rev. January 2025)
Department of the Treasury

Compensation Information

For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 23.

Attach to Form 990.

OMB No. 1545-0047

Open to Public

Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 20-4398131

m Questions Regarding Compensation

1a Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form
990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part Il to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
[] First-class or charter travel Housing allowance or residence for personal use
[1 Travel for companions [] Payments for business use of personal residence
[] Tax indemnification and gross-up payments [] Health or social club dues or initiation fees
[] Discretionary spending account [] Personal services (such as maid, chauffeur, chef)

b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment
or reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If “No,” complete Part lfl to
explain .

2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by ail
directors, trustees, and officers, including the CEQ/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on line
1a? .

3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the organization used to establish the compensation of the
organization’s CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a
related organization to establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part Il

Written employment contract

[L] Compensation survey or study

Approval by the board or compensation committee

[] Compensation committee
[ Independent compensation consultant
[] Form 990 of other organizations

4  During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:
a Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment? .
Participate in or receive payment from a supplemental nonqualified retlrement pIan” .
¢ Participate in or receive payment from an equity-based compensation arrangement? . .
if “Yes” to any of lines 4a—c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part III.

-3

Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations must complete lines 5-9.
5 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the revenues of:
a The organization?
b Any related organization? .
If “Yes” on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part III

6 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the net earnings of:
a The organization?
b Any related organization? .
If “Yes” on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part IIl

7 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed
payments not described on lines 5 and 67 If “Yes,” describe inPartitt . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 v

8  Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VI, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject
to the initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If “Yes,” describe
in Part 11l . e e

9 If “Yes” on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in
Regulations section 53.4958-6(c)? . . . . . . . . . . . < o . . ..o oo 9

Schedule J (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat. No. 50053T
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Part 1!

Supplemental Information. Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part I,

lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part Il. Also complete this part for any
additional information.

Return Reference - Identifier Explanation

1SCHE[8ULSIIE JéPART I, LINE [HOUSING ALLOWANCE PROVIDED PER TERMS OF BOARD APPROVED EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT.
A - HOUSIN

ALLOWANCE OR

RESIDENCE FOR

PERSONAL USE
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SCHEDULE O
(Form 990)

(Rev. January 2025)

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ

Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

OMB No. 1545-0047

Open to Public

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
New College of Florida Development Corporation 20-4398131

Return Reference - Identifier

Explanation

FORM 990, PART |, LINE 1 -
DESCRIPTION OF
ORGANIZATION MISSION:

DIRECT SUPPORT ORGANIZATION TO PROVIDE AID IN THE FORM OF MONEY AND OTHER FORMS OF
PROPERTY AND SERVICES TO NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA, A MEMBER OF THE FLORIDA STATE
UNIVERSITY SYSTEM.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 7A -
MEMBERS OR STOCKHOLDERS
ELECTING MEMBERS OF
GOVERNING BODY

THE DIRECTORS OF THE CORPORATION ARE ELECTED IN THE FOLLOWING MANNER: (A) ONE
DIRECTOR IS APPOINTED BY THE CHAIR OF NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA BOARD OF TRUSTEES; (B)
ONE DIRECTOR IS THE PRESIDENT OF NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA; (C) ONE DIRECTOR IS
APPOINTED BY THE PRESIDENT OF NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA; (D) TWO DIRECTORS ARE
APPOINTED BY THE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF
THE NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA FOUNDATION, INC., A FLORIDA NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION; (E) UP TO TWO ADDITIONAL DIRECTORS MAY BE ELECTED AT THE ANNUAL
hDAI%EI(-JING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS BY THE CURRENT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF

TORS.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 7B -
DECISIONS REQUIRING
APPROVAL BY MEMBERS OR
STOCKHOLDERS

ANY AMENDENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OR THE BYLAWS MUST BE
APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 8B -
DOCUMENTATION OF
MEETINGS HELD BY
COMMITTEES OF GOVERNING
BODY

THE ORGANIZATION DOES NOT HAVE ANY COMMITTEES THAT HAVE AUTHORITY TO ACT ON
BEHALF OF THE BOARD.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 11B -
REVIEW OF FORM 990 BY
GOVERNING BODY

THE ORGANIZATION REVIEWS THE 990 WITH MEMBERS OF THE GOVERNING BODY AT THEIR
ANNUAL MEETING PRIOR TO FILING THE 990 WITH THE IRS.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 12C -
CONFLICT OF INTEREST
POLICY

ALL BOARD MEMBERS AND INTERESTED PERSONS ARE REQUIRED TO DISCLOSE TO THE BOARD
ANY POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. EACH DIRECTOR, OFFICER AND

BOARD MEMBER MUST ANNUALLY SIGN A STATEMENT WHICH AFFIRMS THEY ARE UNAWARE OF
ANY CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 19 -
REQUIRED DOCUMENTS
AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC

ALL REQUIRED DISCLOSURES ARE MADE AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION A,
LINE 7A: -

THE DIRECTORS OF THE CORPORATION ARE ELECTED IN THE FOLLOWING MANNER: (A) ONE
DIRECTOR IS APPOINTED BY THE CHAIR OF NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA BOARD OF TRUSTEES; (B)
ONE DIRECTOR IS THE PRESIDENT OF NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA; (C) ONE DIRECTOR IS
APPOINTED BY THE PRESIDENT OF NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA,; (D) TWO DIRECTORS ARE
APPOINTED BY THE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF THE NEW COLLEGE OF
FLORIDA FOUNDATION, INC., A FLORIDA NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION; (E) UP TO TWO
ADDITIONAL DIRECTORS MAY BE ELECTED AT THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS BY THE CURRENT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION A,
LINE 7B: -

ANY AMENDENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OR THE BYLAWS MUST BE APPROVED BY
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION A,
LINE 8B: -

THE ORGANIZATION DOES NOT HAVE ANY COMMITTEES THAT HAVE AUTHORITY TO ACT ON
BEHALF OF THE BOARD.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B,
LINE 11B: -

THE ORGANIZATION REVIEWS THE 990 WITH MEMBERS OF THE GOVERNING BODY AT THEIR
ANNUAL MEETING PRIOR TO FILING THE 990 WITH THE IRS.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B,
LINE 12C: -

ALL BOARD MEMBERS AND INTERESTED PERSONS ARE REQUIRED TO DISCLOSE TO THE BOARD
ANY POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. EACH DIRECTOR, OFFICER AND BOARD MEMBER MUST
ANNUALLY SIGN A STATEMENT WHICH AFFIRMS THEY ARE UNAWARE OF ANY CONFLICTS OF
INTEREST.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C,

LINE 19: -

ALL REQUIRED DISCLOSURES ARE MADE AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST.

FORM 990, PART XII, LINE 2C -

THE PROCESS REMAINS UNCHANGED FROM THE PRIOR YEAR.

FORM 990, PART XII, LINE 2C -
CHANGE OF OVERSIGHT
PROCESS OR SELECTION
PROCESS

THE PROCESS REMAINS UNCHANGED FROM THE PRIOR YEAR.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

Cat. No. 51056K Schedule O (Form 990) (Rev. 1-2025)
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New College of Floridarida

The Honors College

2025-26 Housing Revenues & Expense Budget
as of September 30, 2025

Projected

Fund Balance @ 6-30-26

$4,019,376

Percent of Surplus/(Deficit)
Budget Percent of Estimated in Revenues
Current Realized/ Receivables/ Balance/(Over)
Budget Actual Expensed Total in Expenses
Revenues
Student Housing Charges $6,122,000 $3,252,662 $2,869,338  $6,122,000 $0
Use of Prior Year's Fund Balance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Conference Housing Income (Summer) $25,000 ($440) $25,440 $25,000 $0
Investment Income $130,000 $37,066 $92,934 $130,000 $0
Other Revenues $25,000 $16,899 $8,101 $25,000 $0
Total Revenues $6,302,000  $3,306,187 52.5% 25.0% $2,995,813  $6,302,000 $0
Expenditures
Personnel Services $509,862 $90,773 $419,089 $509,862 $0
Fringe Benefits $220,889 $41,633 $179,256 $220,889 50
Personnel and Benefits $730,751 $132,406 18.1% 25.0% $598,345 $730,751 $0
Other Personnel Services $180,000 $5,604 $174,396 $180,000 $0
Operating Expenses $3,147,199 $1,838,212  $3,147,199 $0
Contractual $893,233 $0
Materials and Supplies $8,213 $0
Repairs and Maintenance $18,315 $0
Utilities $151,955 $0
Insurance $14,407 $0
NCDC Other Administrative Costs $145,058 $0
Mighty Banyan House $57,000 $0
Other Operating Expenses $20,806 50
Operating Expenditures $3,327,199  $1,314,591 39.5% 25.0% $2,012,608  $3,327,199 $0
Total Operating Expenditures $4,057,950 $1,446,997 35.7% 25.0% $2,610,953  $4,057,950 $0
Operating Income Before Debt $2,244,050 $1,859,190 $384,860 $2,244,050
Principal Payment $1,160,000 $1,160,000 $1,160,000 $0
Interest Costs $559,108 $139,777 $419,331 $559,108 $0
Capital Improvements & Furniture $100,522 $81,371 $19,151 $100,522 $0
Administrative Overhead $424,420 $106,105 $318,315 $424,420 50
Total Expenditures $6,302,000  $2,934,250 46.6% 25.0% $3,367,750  $6,302,000 $0
Surplus / (Deficit) $0 $371,937 ($371,937) $0 $0
Coverage Ratio (Budget and Actual) [ 131 [ 143 131 ]
COPS Covenant Ratio Requirement 1.15 1.15 1.15
Meets Covenant Test (Yes or No) Yes Yes
Beginning Unrestricted Fund Balance @ 7-1-25 $4,019,376
Use of Fund Balance $0
Current Year Projected Surplus/(Deficit) $0




New College of Florida
The Honors College

N

2025-26 Operating Budget Status
as of September 30, 2025

Projected
Percent of Surplus/(Deficit)
Budget Percent of Estimated in Revenues and
Current Realized/ Year Receivables/ Balance/(Overage)
Budget | Actual |__Expensed | Completed |} Commitments Total in Expenses
Revenues
Housing Revenues (transfers) $754,600 $284,834 $469,766 $754,600 $0
Investment Income $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Other Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Total Revenues $754,600 $284,834 37.7% 25.0% $469,766 $754,600 $0
Expenditures
Interest Expense-Bank Loan $559,108 $139,777 $419,331 $559,108 $0
Debt Amortization & Debt Service Costs $2,492 $0 $2,492 $2,492 $0
Other Administrative Costs (Note 1) $193,000 $145,057 $47,943 $193,000 $0
Total Expenditures $754,600 $284,834 37.7% 25.0% $469,766 $754,600 $0
Surplus / (Deficit) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Notes:
1. Other administrative costs include auditing services.




SECOND AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED SERIES 2006
SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST AGREEMENT

by and among

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, AS ULTIMATE
SUCCESSOR IN TRUST TO SUNTRUST BANK,
as Trustee and

NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA PROPERTY CORPORATION,
as Lessor

and

NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION,
as Lessee

Dated as of December 1, 2025

Relating to

Certificates of Participation
(New College of Florida Development Corporation Master Lease Program), Series
2006 Evidencing an Undivided Proportionate Interest of the Owners thereof in
Basic Rent Payments to be made under a Master Lease-Purchase Agreement by the
New College of Florida Development Corporation, as Lessee



SECOND AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED SERIES 2006
SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST AGREEMENT

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED SERIES 2006
SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST AGREEMENT, dated as of December 1, 2025 (the "Second Amendment")
amends and supplements the Amended and Restated Series 2006 Supplemental Trust Agreement dated as
of April 1,2012, as amended by the First Amendment to Amended and Restated Series 2006 Supplemental
Trust Agreement dated as of April 1, 2022 (the "Supplemental Trust Agreement"), by and among U.S.
BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as successor in trust to SunTrust Bank, a
national banking association with corporate trust powers qualified to accept trusts of the type set forth in
the Trust Agreement (the "Trustee")), NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA PROPERTY
CORPORATION, as lessor (the "Lessor"), a single-purpose, not for profit corporation organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Florida and NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION, as lessee (the "Lessee") a single-purpose, not for profit corporation organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Florida, a direct support organization of the New College of Florida
pursuant to Section 1004.28, Florida Statutes and an instrumentality of the New College of Florida (the
"University").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Lessee has caused to be issued and outstanding the Certificates of Participation,
Series 2006 (the “Certificates’) issued pursuant to the terms of a Master Trust Agreement dated as of April
1, 2006 by and among the Lessor, the Trustee and the Lessee, as supplemented and amended by the
Supplemental Trust Agreement (collectively, the “Trust Agreement’); and

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Certificates were used by the Lessee to finance the construction
and renovation of certain student housing facilities (the “Housing Facilities”) located on the New College
of Florida Board of Trustees’ main campus (the “Board”); and

WHEREAS, the Housing Facilities are leased by the Lessee to the Board pursuant to the terms of
a Facilities Sublease and Management Agreement dated as of April 1, 2006 that has a term which is co-
terminus with the maturity date of the Certificates; and

WHEREAS, the holder of the Certificates is Truist Bank, formerly known as SunTrust Bank (the
"Lender"); and

WHEREAS, the Lender, the Lessor and the Lessee have agreed to modify certain provisions of
the Supplemental Trust Agreement as set forth herein and it is necessary to amend the Supplemental Trust
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 902 of the Supplemental Trust Agreement the provisions of the
Supplemental Trust Agreement may be amended as provided therein; and

WHEREAS, all things necessary to amend the Supplemental Trust Agreement have been done and
performed, and the creation, execution and delivery of this Second Amendment has in all respects been
duly authorized;
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NOW, THEREFORE, THIS SECOND AMENDMENT WITNESSETH:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

SECTION 101. DEFINITIONS. Words and terms which are defined in the Trust
Agreement, shall have the same meanings ascribed to them in the Trust Agreement when used
herein, unless the context or use indicates a different meaning or intent.

ARTICLE 11
AMENDMENTS TO SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST AGREEMENT

SECTION 201. AMENDMENTS TO SECTION 601.(f). Section 601.(f) of the
Supplemental Trust Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and restated as follows:

) Rate Covenant: The Lessee shall maintain a rate of 1.00 times Fixed
Charged Coverage. “Fixed Charge Coverage” means the quotient of (a) the total of Net
Operating Revenues plus Principal and Interest Requirements plus the portion of Operating
Expenses relating to capital expenditures plus the portion of Operating Expenses relating
to administrative overhead, divided by (b) Principal and Interest Requirements.

SECTION 202. AMENDMENTS TO SECTION 601.(g). Section 601.(f) of the
Supplemental Trust Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and restated as follows:

(2) Additional Bonds Test. While the Series 2006 Certificates remain
outstanding and are held by the Bank, prior to issuing any Certificates of Participation, the
Executive Director of the Lessee shall certify that the average of System Revenues
associated with the New College of Florida Housing System for the two most recently
audited fiscal years equals at least 1.20 times the projected maximum annual debt service
on all Certificates to be outstanding following the issuance of the additional parity debt.
Such System Revenues may be adjusted to account for an increase in Net Operating
Revenues projected to be generated as a result of the Project to be financed with the
proceeds of the additional parity debt. Such adjustments must be prepared by any qualified
independent consultant acceptable to the Bank.

SECTION 203. ADDITION OF SECTION 601.(j). Section 601.(j) is hereby added to
the Supplemental Trust Agreement as follows:

() Annual Compliance Certificate. Commencing on June 30, 2026 and within
180 days of each subsequent fiscal year end, the Lessee shall provide an annual covenant
compliance certificate signed by its Executive Director, including supporting calculations,
evidencing compliance with (i) the Lease Rates Covenant (Section 601.(d) hereof), (ii) the
Residency Occupancy Requirement Covenant (Section 601.(e) hereof), (iii) the Rate
Covenant (Section 601.(f) hereof), and, if applicable, (iv) the Additional Bonds Test

3



(Section 601(g) hereof).

ARTICLE III
MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 301. PROVISIONS OF SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST AGREEMENT NOT
OTHERWISE MODIFIED. Except as expressly modified or amended hereby, the Supplemental Trust
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. To the extent of any conflict between the terms of this
Second Amendment and the Supplemental Trust Agreement, the terms hereof shall control.

SECTION 302. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. Nothing in this Second Amendment,
express or implied, is to or shall be construed to confer upon or to give to any person or party other than
the Lessor, and its assignee, the Trustee, the Lender and the Lessee any rights, remedies or claims under
or by reason of this Second Amendment or any covenants, condition or stipulation hereof; and all
covenants, stipulations, promises and agreements in this Second Amendment contained by or on behalf of
the Lessor or the Lessee shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Lessor, and its assignee and the
Lessee. The Lender shall be deemed a third-party beneficiary of this Second Amendment.

SECTION 303. COUNTERPARTS. This Second Amendment may be simultaneously
executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but
one and the same instrument.

SECTION 304. HEADINGS. Any heading preceding the text of the several Articles
hereof, and any table of contents or marginal notes appended to copies hereof, shall be solely for
convenience of reference and shall not constitute a part of this Second Amendment, nor shall they affect
its meaning, construction or effect.

SECTION 305. ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES. To the fullest extent permitted by
applicable law, electronically transmitted or facsimile signatures shall constitute original signatures for all
purposes under this Second Amendment.

SECTION 306. LAWS. This Second Amendment shall be construed and governed in
accordance with the laws of the State.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Second Amendment by
their officers thereunto duly authorized as of the date and year first written above.

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION, as Trustee

By:
Name:
Title:

ATTEST: NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA PROPERTY
CORPORATION, as Lessor

By:
Name:
Title:

ATTEST: NEW COLLEGE OF FLORIDA
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, as Lessee

By:
Name:
Title:
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